
Goodhue County Planning Commission
Government Center -  Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Planning Advisory Commission

Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

June 18, 2018 Planning Advisory Commission Draft MEETING MINUTES

MINUTES_JUNE2018_PAC_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

Public Hearings:

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Amendment To Existing CUP For A Retreat Center And Scrapbooking 
Retail Store (Firefly Farm LLC)

Request, submitted by Firefly Farm LLC (Trisha Studer), to amend CUP Z16-0060 (approved 10/04/16) to 
modify plans for a proposed Retreat Center and existing scrapbooking retail store. Parcel 39.033.0800. 
51525 210th Ave, Pine Island, MN 55963. Part of the E½ of SE¼ Sec 33, Twp 109, Range 15, in Pine 
Island Township. A3 Zoned District.  

PACPACKET_FIREFLYFARM_AUG2018.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w
w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385-3104 w Fax: 651/385-3106 w

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/a12de5f9-7d56-476b-aaeb-4bbcdf34eeca


Page - 1 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 7:00 
PM by Chair Darwin Fox at the Goodhue County Government Center 3rd Floor Board Room in 
Red Wing, Minnesota. 

Roll Call 

Commissioners Present: Len Feuling, Tom Gale, Darwin Fox, Marc Huneke, Richard (Dick) 
Nystuen, Sarah Pettit 

Commissioners Absent: Ron Allen, Tom Drazkowski, 

Staff Present: Land Use Management Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Mike Wozniak, 
Zoning Assistant Ryan Bechel 

1. Approval of Agenda 

1Motion by Commissioner Feuling; seconded by Commissioner Nystuen to approve the meeting 
agenda. Motion carried 5:0 (Huneke absent) 

2. Approval of Minutes 
2Motion by Commissioner Gale; seconded by Commissioner Feuling to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes. Motion carried 5:0 (Huneke absent) 

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  

There were no reported conflicts of interest.  

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS: Request for Map Amendment (Rezone)  
Request for map amendment submitted by David Lorentz to rezone 11.35 acres from A2 (Agriculture 
District) to R1 (Suburban Residence District). Parcel 41.014.1500. 4900 Scout Ridge RD Cannon Falls, 
MN 55009. Part of the SE ¼ of the NE¼ in Sect 14 Twp 112 Range 18 in Stanton Township. 
Dan Nokomis (Applicant) was present to represent the application. 
 
7:08 Commissioner Huneke arrives. 

The Applicant (Dave Lorentz) was present to represent the application. 

Lisa Hanni (Hanni) presented the staff report and attachments. Hanni recommended that the 
item not be brought to the County Board for consideration until July 2nd to ensure Mr. Lorentz 
attains driveway access approval from MNDOT prior to approving the rezone. 

Commissioner Pettit inquired about the “60-day” (MN Stat. 15.99) rule limitations. 

Hanni responded that the County has until July 9th to make a decision to meet the 60-day rule 
requirements.  

Chair Fox opened the Public Hearing. 

Dave Lorentz (Applicant) mentioned that he has had conversation with Scott Johnson of 
MNDOT and has been told he will have the signed agreement available prior to the 6/19/18 
County Board meeting. He provided a copy of an email conversation detailing driveway 
access conditions from MNDOT (Attachment 1). He added that he desires to have a decision 
made as soon as possible to accommodate a modular home that he has ordered and is ready 
for delivery to the site. 

Hanni responded that the email provided is not the driveway access permit approval that is 

 
 
 
 



Page - 2 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
required. Hanni added that the reason for requiring the driveway access approval prior to 
approving the rezone is to prevent a situation where MNDOT would need to grant a second 
driveway access to the northern lot if an easement weren’t in place for that parcel to have 
access through the southern parcel. She reminded the Applicant that permits would be 
required prior to bringing any structures onto the property. 
3After Chair Fox asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Feuling and seconded by Commissioner Gale to close the public hearing. Motion 
carried 6:0 

Hanni clarified that staff is recommending that the PAC approve the request for rezone and 
direct staff as to whether they should wait to have the County Board consider the request until 
the Applicant has received driveway access permits from MNDOT. 

Commissioner Fueling mentioned that Stanton Township is predominantly residential and felt 
that the rezone was compatible with the area.   
4Motion by Commissioner Nystuen seconded by Commissioner Huneke, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 

and 
Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the map amendment request 
from David Lorentz to rezone 11.35 acres from A2 (Agriculture District) to R1 (Suburban 
Residence District). Parcel 41.014.1500. 4900 Scout Ridge RD Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Part of 
the SE ¼ of the NE¼ in Sect 14 Twp 112 Range 18 in Stanton Township. 

Motion Carried 6:0 

Commissioner Nystuen asked if staff would be comfortable allowing the Applicant’s request to 
be considered on 6/19/18 by the County Board if they were able to resolve the issue prior to 
approving a building permit. 

Hanni responded that she was concerned that an access easement wouldn’t get recorded 
before a potential sale of the 2 parcels.  

Commissioner Gale asked if the Applicant could get the easement access recorded prior to the 
6/19/18 County Board meeting. 

Hanni said she could work with the Applicant to get it recorded. 

The PAC recommended that staff use their discretion to determine if the request is ready to be 
considered prior to the 6/19/18 County Board Meeting.   

 
PUBLIC HEARING: IUP request for Home Business 

Request for an Interim Use Permit (IUP) submitted by Steve Jacobsen (Cannon Custom 
Cabinets) to reestablish a home-based cabinetry business destroyed by fire. Located at 30700 
Oxford Mill RD Cannon Falls, MN 55009. Parcel 41.013.5501. Part of the SW ¼ of the SE¼ and 
SE¼ of the SW¼ in Sect 13 Twp 112 Range 18 in Stanton Township. A3 Zoned District. 

Steve Jacobsen (Applicant) was present to represent the application.  

Lisa Hanni (Hanni) presented the staff report and attachments. 

Commissioner Nystuen questioned the ability to enforce a condition specifying “occasional” 

 
 
 
 



Page - 3 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
hours on Saturday sand Sundays.  

The Applicant stated that he typically avoids working on weekends. However, he would like 
the ability to operate on Saturdays if there were a need. He added that he utilizes his shop for 
personal use in his off-time and does not want to be restricted from being able to work on 
personal projects on the weekend. He added that Stanton Township is recommending allowing 
him to operate on Saturdays from 7:00 AM to 5:30 PM. 

Hanni clarified that personal projects would not be regulated with this proposal. 

The Applicant added that his intent is to not work Saturdays but he would like to reserve that 
option if demand called for it. 

Commissioner Nystuen recommended amending the condition regarding working hours to 
state Monday through Saturday from 7:00 AM to 6:00 PM. 

Hanni commented that the Applicant will still be bound by any conditions placed upon his 
operating hours through Stanton Township’s CUP process.  

Chair Fox opened the Public Hearing. 

Janelle Sternitzky, 30991 Oxford Mill Road, stated that she lives adjacent to the Applicant. 
Janelle asserted that the Applicant operates 7 days per week. She raised concerns regarding 
burning of cabinet making byproducts and other materials on the property (such as furniture, 
mattresses, and wood materials. Janelle stated she wants the burning of materials to stop and 
further added that fumes coming from the operation need to be addressed. Janelle commented 
that given the scale of the Applicant’s operation, it may be more appropriate in a commercial 
district and not a residential area.  

Aaron Deutsch, 55439 Deerwood Drive, stated he lives directly south of the Applicant and is 
the nearest neighbor. He has never had any issues with dust, odor, fumes, or noise. He voiced 
support of the Applicant’s proposal. 

Ruth Sternitzky, 30991 Oxford Mill Road, stated she is now retired and is home during the day 
to hear noises compared to those that are gone to work during the day. She stated that after 
the fire she has become more aware of the level of noise that was being produced given the lack 
of noises with the current absence of the operation. She feels the Applicant’s business has 
expanded beyond what is reasonable for the area.  
5After Chair Fox asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Pettit and seconded by Commissioner Feuling to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 6:0 

Hanni clarified staff’s remarks regarding the home business being conducted primarily within 
the proposed structure stating that staff’s understanding is that the cabinet production would 
take place within the structure and the loading and unloading would take place outside. 

The Applicant agreed with Hanni’s statement and added that the new structure has been 
designed to accommodate indoor loading and unloading to prevent materials from being 
damaged in inclement weather.   

Hanni mentioned that if materials are being inappropriately burned that staff should be 
notified so Goodhue County Solid Waste can address any issues.  

Commissioner Pettit asked if ventilation concerns expressed during the public hearing were 

 
 
 
 



Page - 4 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
more of a concern that would fall within OSHA’s purview. 

Hanni replied that ventilation requirements are typically reviewed through commercial 
building code review which his building would be subjected to. 

Commissioner Nystuen asked the Applicant if he believed the noise outputs from the site would 
be different from previous levels. 

The Applicant responded that they did not anticipate noise levels to change from what they’ve 
been for the past 17 years. The new building will be spray-foamed which should provide 
additional sound reduction compared to the fiberglass insulation in the old building. He 
mentioned that the neighbors that spoke in opposition during the public hearing had not 
voiced any issues with their business until recently when they had a project that they were 
working on denied by Stanton Township.  He added that it was discussed at the Stanton 
Township Planning Commission meeting that a larger dumpster would be utilized for this 
business and burning on the property would be limited to recreational fires only. 

Commissioner Pettit questioned if the tree line along the west side of the property (indicated on 
the aerial photos) which separates the business from the opposing neighbors to the west was 
still in place. 

The Applicant responded it was. 
6Motion by Commissioner Pettit seconded by Commissioner Gale, for the Planning 
Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• amend staff suggested condition #2; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 

and 
 
Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from Steve 
Jacobsen for an IUP to reestablish a Tier-3 Home Business. 

Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this IUP;  

2. Hours of operation shall be Monday through Saturday, 7:00 AM to 6:00 PM;  

3. On-street parking shall be prohibited; 

4. On-street loading or off-loading shall be prohibited;  

5. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals for the proposed structure from the 
Goodhue County Building Permits Department prior to establishing the use; 

6. Applicant shall work with Goodhue County Environmental Health to achieve compliance 
with the Goodhue County SSTS Ordinance; 

7. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

8. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 11, Section 12, Home Businesses and Article 23 A3, Urban Fringe District. 

Motion carried 6:0 
 
 
 
 



Page - 5 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Contractors Yard (Alfred Bear) 
Request for CUP submitted by Alfred Bear (Bear’s Overhead Door) to establish a Contractors 
Yard for a commercial door service and installation business. 37509 County 4 BLVD Goodhue, 
MN 55027. Parcel 33.023.0600. Part of the NW ¼ of SW ¼, Sect 23 Twp 111 Range 15 in 
Goodhue Township. A1 Zoned District. 
 

Mark Beeche was present to represent the application on behalf of the applicant. 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments. She noted that staff would like to strike 
suggested condition #3 regarding driveway access permit approval as the applicant has an 
existing approved driveway access and no additional access is being proposed with the 
request.  

Commissioner Pettit asked if a site visit was conducted. 

Mike Wozniak (Wozniak) stated that staff had conducted a site visit and would note that the 
Applicant conducts a clean, well-run operation. He added that the nearest dwellings are 
located approximately 1100 feet from the location of the business.  

Commissioner Fox questioned the hours specified in the suggested conditions which stipulate 
Monday through Friday only. He noted that a garage door business typically needs to operate 
occasionally on weekends to accommodate emergency service calls.  

Mark Beeche (34725 Betcher Trail Goodhue, MN) stated that he doesn’t work weekends but 
that Alfred Bear (Applicant) will occasionally.  

Wozniak noted that the application did not distinguish the days of the week that it was 
requesting to operate, but rather only the daily hours. Staff took the conservative approach to 
recommend working days be limited to Monday through Friday. 

Commissioner Nystuen was concerned that limiting weekend hours would prevent the 
Applicant from being able to attend to emergency service calls on the weekend which is a 
necessary part of the particular type of business. 

Chair Fox opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request.  
7After Chair Fox asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Pettit and seconded by Commissioner Huneke to close the public hearing.  

Motion Carried 6:0 

Commissioner Pettit asked if adequate space was available for semi-trucks to circulate 
through the property without offloading on the street. She added that she had received a 
complaint regarding a situation in which a truck was being off-loaded at an on-street location. 

Wozniak mentioned there is a loading dock set up on the existing structure and a circular 
driveway access to accommodate off street unloading of semi-trucks.  

Mr. Beeche added that trucks are required to circulate through the site in order to get turned 
around and off-load.  
8Motion by Commissioner Feuling seconded by Commissioner Nystuen, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  

 
 
 
 



Page - 6 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• remove staff suggested condition #3; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 

and 
Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from Alfred Bear 
(Bear Overhead Doors LLC) for a CUP to establish a Contractors Yard.  Upon approval, this 
Conditional Use Permit will replace and cause the 2012 Conditional Use Permit for a Home 
Occupation Permit to be revoked. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP 

2. Hours of operation shall be year-round, Monday through Friday from 6:30 AM to 6:30 
PM; 

3. Applicant shall obtain a driveway access permit from Goodhue County Public Works 
prior to establishing the use; 

3. On-street parking shall be prohibited; 

4. On-street loading or off-loading shall be prohibited;  

5. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals for the proposed structure from the 
Goodhue County Land Use Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

6. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to Article 
21 A-1 (Agriculture Protection District) and Article 11 Section 33 (Contractors Yard); 

7. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations. 

Motion Carried 6:0  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Contractors Yard (Thomas Demartini) 
Request for CUP submitted by Thomas Demartini (Demartini Trucking) to establish a 
Contractors Yard for a commercial trucking business. TBD County 9 BLVD Goodhue, MN 
55027. Parcels 25.029.0309 and 25.029.0303. Part of the NW ¼, Sect 29 Twp 111 Range 16 in 
Belle Creek Township. A1 Zoned District. 
 

Thomas Demartini (Applicant) was present to represent the application. 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.   

Commissioner Fox questioned why the application was being considered as a CUP and not an 
IUP.  

Wozniak replied the choice to approve the request as a CUP or IUP is determined through the 
CUP process. He noted that Home Businesses are required by Ordinance to be issued as IUP’s 
because the operation is tied with the dwelling.  

Hanni noted that the PAC should consider the amount of investment needed for an operation 
such as this and understand that it if were approved as an IUP that the operation would 
potentially have to cease upon point of sale.  

Tom Demartini (Applicant) 16919 HWY 60 BLVD Zumbrota, MN added that hours are 
variable from day to day depending on the amount of work.  

 
 
 
 



Page - 7 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
Commissioner Fox asked what type of trucking business the Applicant operates. 

The Applicant replied the business provided hauling and transport for road construction 
projects. The applicant clarified that dump trucks were utilized for the operation not semi-
tractors and trailers.  

Commissioner Huneke asked the applicant if he requested hours to be from 4:00 AM to 8:00 
PM in order to allow for a flexible schedule rather than that they would be operating 
constantly throughout the day during those times. 

The Applicant confirmed that was the reasoning for the broader hours. He added that they 
haul snow in the winter which requires being available 7-days per week.  

Commissioner Gale questioned if the trucks would be permanently stored inside.  

The Applicant responded that they would be stored inside and that they are newer model year 
trucks (2018’s) that are quieter than older models. 

Commissioner Fueling asked the Applicant to clarify the location of the proposed driveway. 

The Applicant stated the driveway would utilize the existing field road access which is in the 
northeast corner of the proposed parcel. 

Commissioner Gale asked where the structure was going to be located. 

The Applicant clarified it would be located on the east side of the proposed parcel and be 
situated 40 feet from the south property line as indicated on his provided site plan.  

Commissioner Fueling questioned the visibility of traffic from the west on CTY 9 BLVD from 
the proposed access drive. 

The Applicant stated he did not feel there were any issues with visibility. 

Ryan Bechel (Bechel) added that, at the recommendation of Goodhue County Public Works 
Director Greg Isaacson’s suggestion, staff conducted an “8-second” sight-distance test to 
evaluate the safety of the proposed site entrance. Staff found that lead times ranged from 10-14 
seconds and noted that traffic appeared to be moving faster than the posted speed limit (55 
mph). 

Commissioner Nystuen questioned the Applicant if he would be open to utilizing calcium 
chloride annually to aid with dust control on site rather than water alone. 

The Applicant stated he would not be opposed to applying calcium chloride to control dust.  

Commissioner Pettit questioned the statement in the application that the proposed building 
was for “agricultural purposes.”  

Wozniak responded that given the building is proposed to be used for commercial purposes it 
will be subject to commercial building code review by the Goodhue County Building Permits 
Department. 

Chair Fox opened the Public Hearing. 

Joshua Wyatt, 13466 CTY 9 BLVD, stated he is the neighbor immediately to the north of the 
proposed site and is opposed to the request. He raised concerns regarding the completeness of 
the Applicant’s site plan, the potential negative impacts to adjacent property values, the hours 
of operation, and concerns with lighting and noise that would be generated by the proposal. 

 
 
 
 



Page - 8 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
Additionally he discussed concerns with privacy involving the positioning of proposed security 
cameras and stressed safety concerns with the proposed driveway access location. He stated 
he would recommend that the use be permitted as an IUP if the PAC were in favor of 
recommending approval. Furthermore, he suggested additional conditions and proposed 
modifications to staff’s suggested conditions. He submitted a written summary of his concerns 
(See attachment 2). 

Roselyn Hjermstad, 30830 Woodhaven Trail, is a member of Cannon Falls Township. She 
expressed concerns with Contractors Yards being allowed within 100 feet of a residence by 
ordinance. She is opposed to the request. She submitted a written statement (See attachment 
3). 

Julie Magalis 11856 CTY 9 BLVD stated she lives approximately 1 mile west of the proposed 
site. She expressed concerns with the public safety regarding the Applicant’s proposed 
driveway access point and with the proposed hours of operation.  

Mike Muggli 12896 375th ST stated he felt the type of noise that would be generated with 
request is unacceptable for the area and is opposed to the request.  
9After Chair Fox asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Feuling and seconded by Commissioner Huneke to close the public hearing.  

Motion Carried 6:0 

Commissioner Gale commented that the proposal was brought before the Belle Creek Town 
Board at their last meeting. He stated the township didn’t have any major issues with the 
proposal but wanted to make it clear that the building could not be used as a dwelling. He also 
mentioned the township had concerns regarding exterior storage, noise, and the hours of 
operation. Regarding the driveway access, the Township would defer to the county as it is a 
County Road. He added that Belle Creek ultimately was in favor of approval of the request but 
mentioned the hours of operation did not appear consistent with what was brought before the 
Belle Creek Town Board by the seller (Les Lundell). 

Commissioner Nystuen commented that the hours of operation are realistic for a trucking 
operation but the question is whether or not they are appropriate for the proposed location.  

Commissioner Pettit stated that the site is in an A1 district and the noise that would be 
generated by the business is typical of farm hauling and transport activities customarily 
present in the district and is not incompatible. She added that she was very concerned with 
public safety with respect to the Applicant’s proposed driveway access onto CTY 9 BLVD.  

Commissioner Fueling commented that a 10-14 second sight-distance time may not be 
adequate for dump trucks exiting the site especially if there are multiple trucks attempting to 
enter the highway at the same time.  

Hanni mentioned that the parcel purchase agreement would need to be reconfigured as the 
current agreement doesn’t have any property fronting on CTY 8 BLVD. 

Commissioner Fox added if the operation were to exit onto CTY 8 BLVD there is a stop sign 
there.  

Hanni asked the Applicant if he understood what the PAC was recommending.  

The Applicant responded he understood the PAC was asking him to reconfigure his proposal to 
have it exit onto CTY 8 BLVD instead of CTY 9 BLVD. 

 
 
 
 



Page - 9 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
There was discussion amongst the PAC regarding public safety and a driveway access onto 
CTY 8 BLVD.  
10Motion by Commissioner Pettit seconded by Commissioner Gale, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 

and 
Recommend the County Board of Commissioners DENY the request from Thomas Demartini 
for a CUP to establish a Contractors Yard. 
 
Motion Denied 2:4  
11Motion by Commissioner Feuling seconded by Commissioner Fox, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

TABLE the request from Thomas Demartini for a CUP to establish a Contractors Yard to allow 
the Applicant time to provide additional information including a more detailed site plan and 
allow the Applicant an opportunity to explore relocating the site so that the driveway could 
access CTY 8 BLVD instead of CTY 9 BLVD.  

Motion Carried 6:0 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a Contractors 
Yard (Simanski Metals LLC) 
Request for a CUP by Simanski Metals LLC (Authorized Agent: Kevin Simanski) to construct and 
operate a Contractors Yard.  Parcel 340081400 and Parcel 340081500. Part of the SE ¼ of NW ¼ 
of Sect 8 Twp 112 Range 14 in Hay Creek Township. 
 

Kevin and Margaret Simanski (Applicants) were present to represent the application. 

Wozniak presented the staff report and attachments.   

The Applicant’s attorney Patrick J Kelly (Kelly and Lemmons P.A.) commented on behalf of the 
Applicants. He stressed that the proposal before the PAC is not a request for a metals recycling 
facility and that the proposal meets all the applicable performance standards required by 
Ordinance for a Contractors Yard. He recognized that the area is predominantly residential 
but the Simanksi’s property is already partially zoned B2 (Highway Business District) which 
administratively permits intensive commercial business such as restaurants, truck stops, gas 
stations, etc. He posited those uses would be more disruptive to the character of the area than 
what the Applicants are requesting. He clarified that the Simanski’s have recorded a 
combination of the 2 parcels to ensure the 3 acre minimum standard is met and have closed off 
the secondary driveway access permit on the north end of the lot. He further noted that 
MNDOT has approved the Applicant’s access request. He stressed that the Applicants will not 
be hauling, or permitted to haul, any hazardous waste materials. He provided 2 visuals 
depicting proposed vegetation and screening along property boundaries. He also mentioned 
the Applicants are receptive to asphalting the portions of Hay Creek Hills Drive that are within 
the MNDOT R-O-W.  

Kevin Simanski (Applicant) 28983 320th AVE Way, detailed the planned operations. He 
mentioned they currently have 5 trucks but do want to be able to expand in the future. He 
trucks in general will leave in the morning and be off-site hauling loads until the end of the 
 
 
 
 



Page - 10 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
day. The majority of their work is currently in the Twin Cities area although one truck does 
run locally. He stated they need to be able to store loaded containers occasionally to 
accommodate pick-ups that happen after the landfills have closed for the day. He added that 
they have worked with MPCA and Goodhue SWCD to achieve all necessary compliance. 

Commissioner Fox questioned asked the applicant to clarify the regulations concerning the 
storing of the demolition materials overnight.  

Kevin Simanski responded that the materials are regulated the same by the MPCA whether 
they are sitting at the demolition site or at a different location such as the proposed 
Contractors Yard. The goal is not to bring loads back to the site, but occasionally it is 
logistically required to maintain efficiency for the business.  

Chair Fox opened the Public Hearing. 

Teresa Gadient, 29407 HWY 58 BLVD, stated her property adjoins the Applicants property. 
She requested the PAC recommend denial of the CUP request as it would be detrimental to the 
surrounding residential properties. She stated that the request before the PAC is essentially the 
same as the request the PAC considered and recommended denial of at the May 2018 PAC 
meeting. She noted concerns regarding traffic, access, noise, and proximity to existing 
residential uses. She provided a written summary of comments and a letter from the City of 
Red Wing regarding the proposal (See attachment 4). 

Scott Reed, 30971 Hay Creek Hills DR, provided a series of photos depicting erosional issues at 
the site following recent rainfall events (See attachment 5). He expressed public safety 
concerns regarding driveway access to the site. He felt that the Applicants proposed vegetative 
screening depicted earlier was suitable. He provided documentation regarding the MPCA’s 
definition of a transfer facility and suggested the Applicant’s proposal to store loaded 
containers on the site would meet the MPCA definition of a transfer facility (See attachment 6). 
He added that MPCA requirements specify containers being stored on site be covered and 
protected from the elements. He stated that if the PAC were to move forward with a 
recommendation for approval he would like to see a condition requiring loaded containers be 
stored under cover.  

Chuck Zimmer, 31320 Hill Ave Red Wing, MN, stated he has been a neighbor of Kevin 
Simanski for many years and stated Kevin has been a great neighbor that is safety 
conscientious and pays attention to details and will follow through with any conditions placed 
upon him. He was in favor of the proposal. 

Sue Reed, 30971 Hay Creek Hills Dr, expressed concerns regarding negative impacts to 
surrounding property values due to noise, traffic, and extensive operating hours. She further 
expressed concerns with groundwater contamination from leaking roll-off containers.  

Patrick Oneill, 29382 HWY 58 BLVD, stated his property is located directly across HWY 58 
from the proposed site. He concurred with previously stated noise, safety, pollution, and 
property value concerns. He stressed that the intersection of HWY 58 and Hay Creek Hills Dr 
is already dangerous and would be further degraded. He added that it would place an 
industrial use directly across from a residential (R1) district. He also added concerns with 
future enforcement of a CUP if granted. 

Denny Tebby 664 23rd ST, Red Wing, stated he lives a mile and a half from the proposed site. 
He mentioned that a stormwater pollution prevention plan had been completed as indicated 
on the stormwater permit included in the staff report, however, that plan wasn’t available for 
review by citizens or the PAC. He raised concerns regarding erosion on site and the lack of best 

 
 
 
 



Page - 11 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
management practices in place for controlling sediment on site. He added concerns regarding 
conflicting screening plans on the site plans submitted by the Applicant. He mentioned that the 
Applicant had a cease and desist order placed on the site for non-compliance with zoning 
requirements in the past.  

Scott Halverson 31255 Fleuger Road raised concerns regarding the lack of screening on the 
east side of the property along HWY 58 in the Applicant’s proposal. 

Jim Maybach, 31351 HWY 58 BLVD, is a member of the Hay Creek Town Board. He provided 
a written summary of Hay Creek Township’s comments (See attachment 7) and a list of 
suggested conditions if the PAC were to consider approval (See attachment 8). He raised 
concerns regarding potential groundwater contamination due to pollutants leaching from 
demolition materials brought on site. He suggested Article 4 of the Goodhue County Zoning 
Ordinance regarding injury to neighboring properties could not be satisfied given the 
potential for environmental issues on site.  

Jordan Erickson, 40425 HWY 58 BLVD, has been employed by Simanski Metals LLC for 
approximately 2 years. He stated they do not handle hazardous materials. He noted that the 
subject property used to be the old Skyline building and was in derelict condition prior to the 
Simanski’s purchasing the property and cleaning it up. 

Brad Johnson 29126 HWY 58 BLVD agreed with concerns regarding groundwater 
contamination and traffic safety brought forth already. He stressed that the PAC should make 
their judgement based on the merits of the request and refrain from making an emotional 
decision. 

Tom Gadient 29407 HWY 58 BLVD stated that he felt the Contractors Yard concept is a good 
thing. However, he feels this is not an appropriate location for a Contractors Yard due to 
existing residential development in the area. He noted that the Applicant was denied for a 
similar request as Junk/Salvage Reclamation yard at the May 2018 PAC meeting and now 
appears to be requesting the same thing but rather categorized as a Contractors Yard.  
12After Chair Fox asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Huneke and seconded by Commissioner Pettit to close the public hearing.  

Motion Carried 6:0 

Commissioner Fueling asked if the Applicant’s Junk/Salvage Reclamation Yard request heard 
by the PAC at their May 2018 meeting was denied or withdrawn. 

Wozniak replied that the PAC recommended denial of that request and the Applicant elected to 
withdraw their request prior to consideration by the County Board.  

Hanni reminded the PAC that the Applicants have 2 zoning districts (B2 and A2) on the 
property and a variety of commercial uses are allowable by administrative permit on the B2 
zoned property.  

Commissioner Nystuen asked staff to compare the Applicants proposed driveway access to 
that of the Thomas DeMartini Contractors Yard request considered earlier. 

Wozniak replied that the Applicant’s request is different from the DeMartini request in that 
HWY 58 BLVD is a 4-lane State Highway and not a 2 lane County Road. He noted that given 
the size and location limitations of the property, MNDOT chose to grant the Applicants access 
to HWY 58 BLVD off of Hay Creek Hills Drive rather than off the northern driveway that 
would have directly accesses HWY 58 BLVD. He added that space along Hay Creek Hills Drive 

 
 
 
 



Page - 12 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
between the Applicants proposed driveway entrance and the stop sign at HWY 58 LBVD is 
limited to accommodate area for stacking of trucks. 

Margaret Simanski stated she has had multiple conversations with MNDOT regarding the 
HWY 58 BLVD access. She stated the angle and radius of the driveway have been altered twice 
to improve it. She noted that 45 foot long school buses are able to negotiate Hay Creek Hills 
Drive and safely access HWY 58 BLVD and there trucks are shorter (35 feet to 40 feet). She 
noted that their drivers receive specialized training for driving their vehicles. She noted that 
the intersection of HWY 58 BLVD and Hay Creek Hills DR was designed for commercial traffic 
because of the historic commercial use of the subject property. She added since the intersection 
is a 4-lane highway, there is an additional lane for traffic to move over if a truck is entering 
the highway. She stated that the old north access drive was removed by MNDOT because it is 
common practice for MNDOT to seek to reduce the number of accesses onto a highway when 
improvements are made.  

Commissioner Nystuen asked staff if they felt there were sufficient conditions in place on the 
language for approval consideration. 

Wozniak replied that stormwater management may need to be addressed and that a more 
detailed vegetative screening plan would be desirable if approval was being considered. He 
asked the PAC to consider if the proposed vegetative screening and fencing are sufficient to 
address the concerns put forth in the public hearing. 

Kevin Simanski commented that the reason there is no screening proposed along the south end 
of HWY 58 BLVD is because that area is proposed to be a future open-air sales lot which would 
be obscured by any screening.  

There was discussion regarding the proposed vegetative screening and fencing plans. 

Commissioner Nystuen asked if staff would be willing to work with the Applicant on the 
“tighten up” the plans further or would that be counterproductive. 

Hanni replied that the PAC would need to provide direction as to what they would like to see 
accomplished. She reminded the PAC that staff’s recommended conditions for approval 
stipulate that no containers with municipal solid waste, demolition debris, or recyclable 
materials would be allowed on the property.  

Wozniak added that, in his opinion, the decision largely comes down to whether or not the PAC 
determines the operation would be in an appropriate location based on what’s around it in 
terms of existing residential uses.  

Commissioner Pettit asked if the Applicants had made copies of the updated vegetative 
screening and fencing plan visuals available to Hay Creek Township.  

The Applicant responded that the visuals were only recently completed and had not been 
available. 

Commissioner Pettit stated that the proposal appears to have adequate screening measures in 
place. Regarding the traffic concerns, she commented that given the B2 zoning of the southern 
parcel, a much more traffic intensive use could be administratively permitted there. She also 
added that even though there are residential uses in close proximity, there is a B2 zone there 
that has also historically existed. 

Commissioner Fox agreed with Commissioner Pettit’s Comments and added that Contractors 
Yards were amended into the Ordinance to accommodate businesses such as the Simanski’s 

 
 
 
 



Page - 13 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
proposal. He stated if the PAC were in favor of approving he would like to see condition #9 of 
staff’s recommendation for approval be amended to require trees in front of the fence on the 
north side of the property (along the Gadient’s driveway). 

Commissioner Pettit agreed with Commissioner Fox’s suggested amendment.  

Draft Findings of Fact to support “APPROVAL” of Simanski Metals LLC, 
Conditional Use Permit request to allow construction and operation of a 
Contractors Yard: 
 
Draft Findings of Fact: 
 
Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan Element 4 (Business and Industry) 
  
Diverse Business Objectives: 
Allow the establishment or expansion of home occupations and cottage enterprises with 
appropriate performance standards while considering the scope and scale of proposals for the 
alteration, modification, or expansion of existing businesses. 

 
Encourage new commercial and industrial ventures that create permanent job opportunities. 
 

1.  The proposed Simanski Metals LLC., Contractors Yard conforms the County’s definition 
for “Contractors Yard”, excluding the proposed temporary storage of waste and/or 
recyclable materials.  

2. The proposed Contractors Yard conforms with the performance standards for 
Contractors Yards set forth in Article 11, Section 33. 

3. The proposed Contractors Yard conformance with other applicable Zoning Ordinance 
provisions including but not limited to required yard setbacks, parking, lighting, 
stormwater management and screening.  

4. The Applicant has proposed trees plantings, but, plans do not include specifics regarding 
species, and size at the time of planting.  A more specific landscape plan is needed. 

5. The Applicant has stated that their hours of operation are 6:00 AM to 6:00 PM Monday 
– Friday and that some maintenance will be performed in the Shop on random 
Saturdays.  Also, trucking will occur on a few Saturdays each year related to certain 
special projects in the County. 

6. The Applicant has provided a copy of the require driveway access permit from MNDOT.  
In addition, a copy of a follow-up letter from MNDOT has been provided.  The letter from 
MNDOT addresses public concerns regarding traffic safety and drainage related to the 
approved driveway access. 

7. The Applicant has provided a copy of an Industrial Stormwater Permit approved by the 
MPCA in April 2018.  Further, the Applicant has prepared plans and committed to 
conform with Goodhue SWCD recommendations related to stormwater management, 
site grading and erosion and sediment control. 
 

13Motion by Commissioner Fox, seconded by Commissioner Huneke, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt staff’s findings of fact in support of approval;  
• amend staff’s suggested condition #9; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 

and 

 
 
 
 



Page - 14 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the Conditional Use Permit request 
from Simanski Metals LLC to construct and operate a Contractors Yard.   
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. The Contractors Yard shall be constructed and operated according to submitted plans, 
specifications, and narrative unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Hours of operation shall be Monday through Friday, 6:00 AM to 6:00 PM, and Saturdays 
from 9:00 AM to 1:00 PM (excluding holidays); 

3. Approval of required subdivision as proposed to reconfigure the existing 1.78-acre and 
2.28 acre parcels in order to establish a 3.20-acre parcel (Contractors Yard Site) and a 
0.84-acre parcel.  No site improvements or building construction associated with the 
Contractor’s Yard may proceed until the subdivision is approved and recorded; with the 
only exception being site grading previously approved (Land Use Land Alteration Permit 
Z180026). 

4. On-street parking shall be prohibited; 
5. On-street loading or off-loading shall be prohibited; 
6. Upon subdivision of the property the Applicant/Owner shall record a driveway access 

easement to ensure right of access for the proposed 3.20 acre parcel through the proposed 
0.84 acre parcel to Hay Creek Hills Trail.  

7. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approval for the proposed Shop/Vehicle Storage 
structure from the Goodhue County Land Use Management Department prior to start of 
construction; 

8. Applicant shall obtain the required permit for the proposed sub-surface wastewater 
treatment system from Goodhue County Environmental Health; 

9. Prior to installation of proposed tree plantings, a detailed plan must be submitted for 
approval by the Goodhue County Land Use Management Department that specifies plant 
species, spacing and size at time of planting.  Trees plantings must be maintained for the 
duration of the Contractors Yard use and must be replaced if lost or damaged for any 
reasons. Trees will be planted along the fencing along the north boundary line of the 
property. 

10. No municipal solid waste, demolition debris or recyclable materials may be stored on or 
transported to the property either on a temporary or permanent basis.  Only waste or 
recyclable materials generated on-site may be temporarily stored on site between 
scheduled trash/recycling pick-up. 

11. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to Article 
22 A-2 (Agriculture District), Article 27 B-2 (Highway Business District), and  
Article 11 (Performance Standards, Section 33 – Contractor Yard). 

12. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations. 

 
Commissioner Gale questioned if the proposal would be a good fit for the area in the long-term 
as far as future development is concerned. 

Commissioner Fox mentioned that to the north an implement dealer exists and it is unclear 
whether the future for this particular area is going to be residential or commercial. 

Wozniak noted that the future use of that area is not detailed in the Goodhue County 
Comprehensive Plan. He reminded the PAC that condition #10 restricts loaded containers from 
being stored on site on a temporary basis.  

Commissioner Fox asked for clarification as his understanding was that only storage of municipal 
solid waste on site was being restricted by condition #10. 

 
 
 
 



Page - 15 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
Wozniak responded that condition #10 states “no municipal solid waste, demolition debris or 
recyclable materials may be stored on or transported to the property either on a temporary or 
permanent basis.  Only waste or recyclable materials generated on-site may be temporarily stored 
on site between scheduled trash/recycling pick-up.” 

Commissioner Pettit mentioned requiring the Applicant to pave the 80 feet of Hay Creek Hills 
Drive in MNDOT R-O-W. She also mentioned that it would be more appropriate for a Contractor’s 
Yard to access onto a 4-lane highway rather than in a rural area or residential subdivision etc.  

Commissioner Fox suggested amending condition #10 to allow materials to be temporarily stored 
on site. 

Hanni asked Commissioner Fox to clarify if he would be requesting those containers be under 
cover. 

Commissioner Fox responded yes. 

Commissioner Gale asked if they should be covered or stored inside. 

Commissioner Fueling stated either option would be fine.  

Commissioner Gale questioned how staff could enforce the proposed condition. 

Hanni replied enforcing of the covering could be done by visually observing loads.  

Wozniak responded that it would be difficult for staff to enforce loads being stored only on a 
temporary basis as it is difficult to track how long a load has been on site. 

Commissioner Fox mentioned that spot audits could be done based on the Applicants pick-up 
tickets to check how long containers had been stored on site. 

The Applicants confirmed they produce a ticket when they pick up and drop off a loaded 
container.  

Commissioner Nystuen asked if Hay Creek Township has a zoning ordinance regulating the use. 

Wozniak responded that Hay Creek Township has authority over issuance of a building permit but 
they do not have provisions requiring a CUP for the proposed use.  

 
14Motion by Commissioner Fox to amend his original Motion, seconded by 
Commissioner Nystuen, for the Planning Advisory Commission to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt staff’s findings of fact in support of approval;  
• strike staff’s suggested condition #3; 
• amend staff’s suggested condition #9; 
• amend staff’s suggested condition #10; 
• add condition #12; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; 

and 
Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the Conditional Use Permit request 
from Simanski Metals LLC to construct and operate a Contractors Yard.   
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. The Contractors Yard shall be constructed and operated according to submitted plans, 
specifications, and narrative unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Hours of operation shall be Monday through Friday, 6:00 AM to 6:00 PM, and Saturdays 
from 9:00 AM to 1:00 PM (excluding holidays); 

 
 
 
 



Page - 16 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
3. Approval of required subdivision as proposed to reconfigure the existing 1.78-acre and 

2.28 acre parcels in order to establish a 3.20-acre parcel (Contractors Yard Site) and a 
0.84-acre parcel.  No site improvements or building construction associated with the 
Contractor’s Yard may proceed until the subdivision is approved and recorded; with the 
only exception being site grading previously approved (Land Use Land Alteration Permit 
Z180026). 

3. On-street parking shall be prohibited; 
4. On-street loading or off-loading shall be prohibited; 
5. Upon subdivision of the property the Applicant/Owner shall record a driveway access 

easement to ensure right of access for the proposed 3.20 acre parcel through the proposed 
0.84 acre parcel to Hay Creek Hills Trail.  

5. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approval for the proposed Shop/Vehicle Storage 
structure from the Goodhue County Land Use Management Department prior to start of 
construction; 

6. Applicant shall obtain the required permit for the proposed sub-surface wastewater 
treatment system from Goodhue County Environmental Health; 

7. Prior to installation of proposed tree plantings, a detailed plan must be submitted for 
approval by the Goodhue County Land Use Management Department that specifies plant 
species, spacing and size at time of planting.  Trees plantings must be maintained for the 
duration of the Contractors Yard use and must be replaced if lost or damaged for any 
reasons. Trees will be planted along the fencing along the north boundary line of the 
property. 

8. Solid waste, demolition debris or recyclable materials may be stored on or transported to 
the property on a temporary basis, as long as the containers are within a building or 
properly covered.  Loaded containers must be removed from the site the next business day. 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to Article 
22 A-2 (Agriculture District), Article 27 B-2 (Highway Business District), and  
Article 11 (Performance Standards, Section 33 – Contractor Yard). 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations. 

11. The applicant shall pave Hay Creek Hills Drive with asphalt from Highway 58 to the west 
part of their driveway entrance onto the property. 

 
Motion To Amend Motion Carried 6:0 

Motion To Approve With Amendments Carried 6:0 

5. Other discussion 
• Staff Update: 
Hanni updated the PAC on the status of the open Zoning Assistant position. 
 
15Adjourn: Moved by Commissioner Feuling, second by Commissioner Gale, to 
adjourn the Planning Advisory Commission meeting at 10:26 PM.  
 
Motion carried 6:0 

Respectfully Submitted,  

Ryan Bechel; Recording Secretary 

 

 
 
 
 



Page - 17 - 
PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

June 18, 2018 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

1 APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda.  
Motion carried 5:0. 

2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes.  
Motion carried 5:0. 

3 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  
Motion carried 6:0 

4 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for map amendment submitted by Dave 
Lorentz. 10966 us hw 

Motion carried 6:0 
5 Motion to close the Public Hearing. 

Motion carried 6:0 
6Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a Tier-3 Home Business submitted by 
Steve Jacobsen. 

Motion carried 6:0 
7 Motion to close the Public Hearing. 

Motion carried 6:0 
8Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a Contractors Yard submitted by 
Alfred Bear. 

Motion carried 6:0 
9 Motion to close the Public Hearing. 

Motion carried 6:0 
10Recommend the County Board of Commissioners DENY the request for a Contractors Yard submitted by Thomas 
DeMartini. 

Motion denied 2:4 
11Recommend the County Board of Commissioners TABLE the request for a Contractors Yard submitted by Thomas 
DeMartini. 

Motion carried 6:0 
12 Motion to close the Public Hearing. 

Motion carried 6:0 
13Recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a Contractors Yard submitted by 
Simanski Metals LLC 

Motion carried 6:0 
14Motion to amend original motion to recommend the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a 
Contractors Yard submitted by Simanski Metals LLC 

Motion carried 6:0 
15 ADJOURN the Planning Commission meeting.  

Motion carried 6:0 

 
 
 
 

                                                 



ATTACHMENT 1



. . -

Public Hearing Comments - DeMartini Trucking CUP 

Joshua & Allison Wyatt 

13466 County 9 Blvd I Goodhue MN 

My name is Joshua Wyatt; my wife and I own and reside on the "nearest neighbor" 

property directly across Highway 9, with a house 600 feet north of the proposed yard. 

speak today to outline several of the concerns we have, and our objection to this 

proposal. I understand public comment time is limited, so I will attempt to speak to each 

concern as briefly as I can, and submit these comments in written form for the record. 

Article 4, Section 2 of the zoning code specifies that applications for a conditional use 

permit must include a Site Plan as defined in Article 10. The plans submitted for this 

permit, when held up against that definition, and by typical standards for commercial 

construction documents, is severely lacking. According to Article 10, several required 

items are missing in the Applicant's submittal: 

• Plans must be drawn to scale

• Details and complete dimensions of all proposed structures, driveways, site

layout, and setbacks must be included

• Site plans must include details of proposed landscaping and screening

• A full site grading plan must be shown, including details of driveway grades

Unfortunately, the lack of detail in the plans makes it difficult to prepare comment on 

portions of the application and staff report, since the facts included can only be based 

on assumptions about what will actually be built. 

Next, Article 4 outlines several findings which the facts of the case shall (a mandatory 

word per Article 10 Section 1) establish, and the staff report in all cases has found that 

the application has met the given standards. I strongly disagree with several of these 

findings and the resulting proposed conditions in the staff report. 

• I disagree with finding 1, that the proposal is not injurious to use and enjoyment

or property values. We would not have purchased or built on our parcel if we

would have known that a commercial trucking yard would be built 600 feet away.

I presume any potential buyer of adjacent property would also take notice of the

yard's proximity and operations, and adjust their offers accordingly.

o Due to the nature of the proposed operation, there is no practical

modification to mitigate this concern; enjoyment and property values will

be impacted.

ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 2



.. . 

• Conditions 4 and 5 permit the applicant to operate up to 10 semi trucks, 7 days a

week, year round, from 4am to Bpm. These hours of operation, combined with

the noise and lighting issues mentioned, are not acceptable in this area. While

there is existing noise from the highway and adjacent agricultural operations, 10

trucks powering out of the lot each morning at 4am is very different from a vehicle

passing at 60mph, or a tractor working a field a few weeks per year.

o To mitigate this impact, Condition 4 should be amended to allow a

maximum of 5 trucks, the size of the applicant's current fleet. Procedures

are in place for the Applicant to apply for an amendment to the permit,

should his use change in the future requiring additional trucks.

o In addition, Condition 5 should be amended to limit the hours of operation

to more reasonable working hours:

• lam - lpm Monday - Friday

• 9am - 5pm Saturday & Sunday

Finally, I must note that if a bona fide agricultural use were being proposed, I would 

have little objection. With many relatives who farm, and having lived in rural areas for 

years, we understand that the sights, smells, and noises of agriculture are part of life. 

Hearing equipment run early in the morning and late at night during planting and harvest 

is expected; another mark of the seasons. However, this permit as proposed would 

enable 10 semi trucks to start up and power out of their lot as early as 4am, 7 days a 

week, 365 days a year. That pattern isn't typical for the A-1 district, and is not 

compatible with the area proposed for construction. 

In closing, if this permit cannot be denied based on the merits of the application alone, I 

urge you to amend the conditions as proposed to help limit the effects on neighbors and 

the community. Thank you. 

ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 3



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 4



ATTACHMENT 5



ATTACHMENT 5



ATTACHMENT 5



ATTACHMENT 5



ATTACHMENT 5



ATTACHMENT 6



ATTACHMENT 6



ATTACHMENT 6



ATTACHMENT 6



ATTACHMENT 6



ATTACHMENT 6



ATTACHMENT 6



ATTACHMENT 6



ATTACHMENT 6



ATTACHMENT 6



ATTACHMENT 6



ATTACHMENT 6



ATTACHMENT 6



ATTACHMENT 6



ATTACHMENT 6



ATTACHMENT 7



ATTACHMENT 7



ATTACHMENT 7



ATTACHMENT 7



ATTACHMENT 7



ATTACHMENT 7



ATTACHMENT 7



PROPOSED ADDITIONAL SIMANSKI CUP 

CONDITIONS 

If the County will not deny a contractor yard permit the 
following conditions should be applied: 

• No material transfer is allowed on site.

• Because of potential groundwater contamination no material
may be in any dumpsters on the site at any time.

• Because of the possibility of potential groundwater 
contaminants being present even in empty dumpsters all 
dumpsters on site must be sealed against entry of water. 

 The proposed eight-foot high screen fence will not shield
from view all of the equipment the applicants propose to use
in their operation. An approved visual barrier, not the
proposed screen fence, around the proposed yard's operations
shall be erected and maintained during the duration of the
permit. The design of the barrier shall be developed by a
registered Landscape Architect and subject to the approval of
a majority of affected parties, made up of the adjoining
landowners, each Hay Creek Hills resident, every Hwy 58

.· landowner within 0.5 miles of the proposed contractor yard 
site, and the County Land Use Department. 

 Hours of operation shall be specifically identified and
limited. 

Failure to comply with any conditions of the permit shall
result in permanent revocation of the permit.

ATTACHMENT 8



 
 

 Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Advisory Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: Aug 20, 2018 
Report date: Aug 10, 2018 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Amendment to Existing CUP for a Retreat Center and 
Scrapbooking Retail Store (Firefly Farm LLC) 
Request, submitted by Firefly Farm LLC (Trisha Studer), to amend CUP Z16-0060 (approved 
10/04/16) to modify plans for a proposed Retreat Center and existing scrapbooking retail store. 
Parcel 39.033.0800. 51525 210th Ave, Pine Island, MN 55963. Part of the E½ of SE¼ Sec 33, Twp 
109, Range 15, in Pine Island Township. A3 Zoned District. 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Firefly Farm LLC (Trisha Studer) 
Address of zoning request: 51525 210th Ave, Pine Island, MN 55963 
Parcel(s): 39.033.0800 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the E½ of SE¼ Sec 33, Twp 109, Range 15, in Pine Island 
Township 
Township Information: Pine Island Township endorsed acknowledgement of the Applicant’s request. 
Zoning District: A3 (Urban Fringe District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
CUP Z16-0060 (Approved 10/04/16) 
Article 11, Section 25 Retreat Centers 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Summary:  
The applicant received CUP approval in October 2016 (Doc#634767) to establish a Retreat Center 
and accessory scrapbooking/crafting retail store at their property in Pine Island Township. The 
applicant established the retail store within the existing residence and began operating in June 2017. 
The original plans were to move the retail store into an existing accessory shed on the property and 
establish the Retreat Center within the residence (see approved CUP). Since opening the retail store, 
they have determined that it functions well within the residence and would like to amend their CUP 
to keep the retail store in its current location and construct a new building to begin hosting retreats 
and associated events. 

The applicant currently hosts retreat events at an off-site location in southeastern MN. The new 
building would allow her to begin hosting retreat events on-site and allow her to continue the retail 
store in its current location.  

 

 

 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


Project Summary: 
Property Information: 
• The subject property consists of a single parcel comprising 11.86 acres. The parcel is zoned A3 

(Urban Fringe District). The parcel is not the applicant’s primary residence. 

 The property is bordered by A3 zoning districts to the north and west; A1 to the east; A2 to the 
south. Adjacent land uses include a shooting range (White Pines Sportsman’s Club), undeveloped 
woodlands, low-density residential and row-crop agriculture. US HWY 52/White Pines Frontage 
Road abuts the property’s southern border.  

 Access to the site is located off of 210th Ave (gravel surface) on the east side of the property. The 
driveway is within a quarter-mile of White Pines Frontage Road (paved) and a half-mile of CTY 11 
BLVD (paved). White Pines Road accesses US HWY 52 approximately 1 mile west of the site.  

Accessory Scrapbooking Retail Center: 
• The applicant intends to keep the retail center in its current location within the existing 

residence. Retail items include materials for scrapbooking, quilting and crafting as well as 
finished gifts and decorative items. Classes and workshops are also held during store hours 
approximately once per week. The store is currently open year-round Monday and Wednesday 
through Saturday from 10:00 AM to 9:00 PM and Sundays from 10:00 AM to 5:00 PM. The 
retail store was originally planned to be located in a 2,800 sq ft pole shed north of the home. This 
structure is now planned to remain as storage space only.   

• Goodhue County has not received any official complaints regarding the applicant’s business 
operations since it began operating in June 2017. 

Retreat Center: 
• The applicant originally proposed to remodel the existing residence to create a 4 bedroom, 3 

bathroom Retreat Center that would accommodate up to 14 guests. She is requesting to amend 
those plans to build a new 104ft x 26ft two-story, walk-out rambler that will accommodate 35 to 
50 guests.  

• The main floor will have a common area with a large workspace for retreat attendants and a 
kitchen available for guests to prepare their own meals. The main floor will also have one 
bedroom with a handicap-accessible bathroom. The lower level will have 8 bedrooms and 8 
bathrooms. The main floor entrance will have a handicap-accessible ramp. The proposed Retreat 
Center location adheres to all applicable property line and feedlot setback requirements.  

• As previously proposed, the retreat center would be open year-round, 7-days per week. Guest 
stays range from 2 to 5 nights. The applicant anticipates guests will typically stay Friday through 
Sunday. Per article 11, Section 25 guest stays cannot exceed 2 weeks unless otherwise approved 
through the CUP process.  

Employees: 
 The applicant anticipates the need for 3 to 4 part-time Non-resident Employees to run the retail 

store and Retreat Center. Staff will be available on-site to assist guests upon arrival as well as 
during retail store hours. Guests will be provided contact information for on-call staff for 
assistance outside of retail store hours. The applicants existing CUP requested 1 to 2 employees.  

Lighting: 
 Two dusk-to-dawn yard lights are currently installed near the house. Two outdoor post lamps 

have also been added near the main parking area north of the home. Exterior safety lighting is 
proposed on the new Retreat Center building for guest safety.  

Traffic and Parking: 

 Minimal additional traffic has been generated with the opening of the accessory retail store area. 
Retreat events will create some additional traffic along 210th Ave as guests initially arrive for their 
stay and when departing. The applicant anticipates many guests will carpool to the Retreat 
Center reducing traffic to the site. In her experience, once on site, guests will mainly stay put with 
the exception of a grocery store/restaurant trip.  

 There is some delivery truck traffic to the site. Deliveries are off-loaded on site near the home.  

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 



On average of 2-4 deliveries are received per week. Weekly delivery trips fluctuate with demand. 

The applicant’s driveway has a circular turnaround area near the house to aid in traffic 
circulation on site. The driveway (asphalt/gravel mix) has been widened to approximately 20 feet 
allowing vehicles to bypass each other to keep traffic flowing off of 210th Ave. Adequate 
emergency vehicle access is available to service the facility. 

 A number of available parking areas exist on site. There are 7 parking stalls immediately north of 
the existing home. A gravel parking area for 5-6 vehicles will be installed north of the proposed 
Retreat Center. Additional parking is available in front of the large storage shed as well. There is 
space available on the property to provide additional parking in the future if needed.   

 Pursuant to GCZO Article 11, Section 16 minimum off-street parking provisions for “Tourist 
Homes/Motels” shall be 1 parking space for each guest rooms, plus 2 additional spaces for 
management and service personnel (10 spaces required). Minimum off-street parking for the 
retail store shall be 1 parking space for every 500 sq ft of floor area (4 spaces required). A 
minimum of 14 off-street parking spaces is required for the facility. 

Ample room exists on the property to fulfill parking requirements.  

Utilities: 

 The existing dwelling is served by a compliant Subsurface Sewage Treatment System (SSTS). The 
proposed Retreat Center will be serviced by a new SSTS which the applicant has had designed by 
G-Cubed engineering services. SSTS plans and designs will require review and approval by 
Goodhue County Environmental Health staff prior to commencing construction of the Retreat 
Center.   

 Solid waste disposal services will be provided locally. Any hazardous materials or fluids 
generated shall be properly disposed of.  

Signage: 

The applicant is proposing to install one 24 sq ft sign near the property’s entrance. A maximum of 32 
sq ft is allowed per GCZO Art. 11 Sect. 17.  

Landscaping/Drainage: 

 Stormwater will be collected and directed via roof guttering. Some of the stormwater will 
infiltrate naturally into the ground and the remainder will be directed towards an existing 
drainage way in the southwest corner of the property. Minimal landscaping work will be needed 
after Retreat Center construction is completed. Any disturbed areas will be re-vegetated to 
prevent future erosion.  
 

Draft Findings of Fact: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 
and public hearing. 
 

1. The proposed Retreat Center and accessory retail store does not appear injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of properties in the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it 
substantially diminish and impair property values in the immediate vicinity. The use has been 
established and operating since June 2017 without any record of conflicts with existing 
residential uses in the area.  

2. The Retreat Center and accessory retail store is not anticipated to impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area. 
The use is proposed to meet all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance 
and the majority of the operations will be confined within the existing and proposed structures. 
The use, as proposed, appears compatible with existing adjacent land uses. 

3. A review of the applicants submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage and other necessary facilities are available or will be installed to accommodate the 
proposed use.  

4. The submitted plans identify means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 4 



serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking requirements.  

5. The Retreat Center and accessory retail store will be conducted primarily within the existing and  
proposed structure to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise, and vibration so 
that none of these will constitute a nuisance. Furthermore, the applicant’s lighting plans appear 
capable of controlling lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will 
result. 

 

Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request from Firefly Farms 
(Trisha Studer) to amend CUP Z16-0060 (approved 10/04/16) to modify plans for a proposed 
Retreat Center and existing scrapbooking retail store. Upon approval, this CUP will replace and 
cause CUP Z16-0060 to be revoked. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Retreat Center and Accessory Retail Store activities shall be conducted according to 
submitted plans, specifications, and narrative unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Hours of operation for the accessory retail store shall be year-round Monday and Wednesday 
through Saturday from 10:00 AM to 9:00 PM and Sundays from 10:00 AM to 5:00 PM; 

3. Hours of operation for the Retreat Center shall be year-round, 7-days per week; 

4. Retreat Center occupancy shall not exceed 50 guests or the design capacity of the connected 
SSTS, whichever is less; 

5. On-street parking shall be prohibited; 

6. Applicant shall obtain Building Permit approvals for the proposed structure from the 
Goodhue County Building Permits Department prior to establishing the use; 

7. Applicant shall work with Goodhue County Environmental Health to achieve compliance with 
the Goodhue County SSTS Ordinance; 

8. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 11, 
Section 25, Retreat Centers and Article 23 A3, Urban Fringe District; 

9. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations. 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 4 





210th Ave looking south to US HWY 52

Approximate area of proposed retreat center



Turnabout and parking area



Driveway entrance looking west

driveway entrance from 210th Ave looking north















Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance  Article 11  Amended April 17, 2018 

ARTICLE 11    PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

SECTION 25.    RETREAT CENTERS 
Subd. 1. The following standards shall apply to all Retreat Centers: 

A. A proposed schedule of events and any proposed special events, which consist of 

any events not part of the normal operating schedule. 

B. Contact information for caretaker(s) on duty and on site and the times they are 

present. 

C. Provide a general floor plan indicating the units to be used for the retreat center 

(in which the public may have access). 

D. Maps identifying property limits shall be provided to guests. 

E. The PAC may require installation of property boundary indicator signs along 

property boundary lines in accordance with Goodhue County Ordinance Sign 

regulations. 

F. Retreat units shall not be converted into permanent dwelling units, unless an 

application is approved showing that the units meet the requirements of the 

Zoning Ordinance, Building Code, and Environmental Health regulations. 

G. The maximum stay of the occupants shall not exceed two weeks, unless 

otherwise established by the IUP/CUP. 

H. Allow periodic inspections by the Land Use Management Department, 

Environmental Health Department, and Fire Marshall. 

I. Any existing buildings in which the public may have access shall obtain all 

applicable Building Code approvals prior to being utilized as part of a Retreat 

Center. 

J. Proof of liability insurance for the structures, property, occupants, visitors, and 

events shall be maintained. 

K. Adequate off-street parking shall be provided. 

L. Maximum capacity shall not exceed 50 guests. 

M. Proof of a compliant septic system shall be required as part of the application. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 










